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WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING OPPORTUNITY - SINGLE ADVICE FUND 

 
Question asked Welsh Government Response 

1 Can a Local Authority apply to the fund as an 
individual LA and not as part of a region? 

Applications for grant funding can be submitted by an individual provider or by a 
collaboration of providers. However, as the funded services are to be planned and 
delivered on a regional basis, a proposal from an individual LA will have to 
demonstrate how it would ensure there is equal and consistent access to the 
funded advice services across all parts of the region (not only within its own LA 
area). It is anticipated that collaborations of providers (perhaps an individual LA 
collaborating with other quality assured providers within their region) will generally 
be better able to demonstrate how they will ensure equal and consistent access to 
services and also meet the full range of advice needs of the diverse communities 
within a region. 

2 Is it worthwhile applying as a smaller 
organisation as previously grants have been 
awarded to the ‘big boys’ organisations.  

Applications for the funding can be submitted by a single quality assured provider 
or by a collaboration of providers, although it is anticipated that collaborations of 
providers will generally be better able to demonstrate how they will meet the full 
range of advice needs of the diverse communities of Wales. 

3 Please can the Welsh Government confirm that 
all clarifications raised, and answers provided, 
as part of the Single Advice Fund grant 
application process will be shared with all 
bidders, to assist all bidders in developing their 
responses and ensuring transparency in the 
process? Please could Welsh Government 
confirm the process by which all questions and 
answers will be circulated, and the timeframe 
within which all questions and answers will be 
circulated, including whether they will be shared 
iteratively throughout the process (for example 
on a weekly basis), in order to avoid duplicate 
questions being asked by multiple providers?  

Welsh Government can confirm that all clarifications raised, and answers 
provided, as part of the Single Advice Fund grant application process will be 
accessible to all bidders, to assist bidders in developing their responses and to 
ensure a fair process. This will be achieved through the publishing of an updated 
questions and answers document on the Welsh Government's website on a 
weekly basis. The URL of the relevant page is: https://gov.wales/single-advice-
fund-guidance 
  
 
 

https://gov.wales/single-advice-fund-guidance
https://gov.wales/single-advice-fund-guidance
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4 For the avoidance of doubt, please can the 
Welsh Government confirm that all clarification 
questions and responses circulated to bidders 
will be anonymised, except where otherwise 
requested? 

All clarification questions and responses circulated to bidders will be anonymised. 
Questioners should be aware however that the information that they provide 
within their question may in certain circumstances have the potential to make 
them identifiable. Welsh Government will be publishing any questions received 
exactly as they have been asked. 

5 Please can the Welsh Government provide 
details for the expected response times to 
clarification questions during the bidding 
window, including whether this will be the 
normal good practice response time of 24 
hours?  

Welsh Government will seek to respond directly to questioners as soon as 
possible and in any event within 7 days of receipt. 

6 Please can the Welsh Government share the 
respective Community Focussed, Specialist, 
and Remote Service draft grant agreements 
with all bidders, as soon as possible, to enable 
bidders to conduct a proper and full 
assessment of the opportunities and ensure full 
transparency in the process?  

The Welsh Government draft grant agreement will be shared with the successful 
organisations at the point of grant offer. 
 
 

7 Please can the Welsh Government share any 
procurement guidelines underpinning the Single 
Advice Fund grant process with all providers, to 
ensure full clarity with and transparency in the 
process? 

The Single Advice Fund is a competitive grant application process, not a 
procurement of services. The Guidance Notes set out the requirements for all 
bidders. 

8 Please can the Welsh Government share the 
assessment criteria which will inform the 
marking of respective quality questions by the 
panel, including detailing the quality criteria 
which will be applied to assessment of grant 
applications and how this will be aligned to the 
scoring of points? 

The Application Form highlights which responses will be scored and the maximum 
score attributable to each. The assessment panel will consider each response 
and will score the response against each question asked as written and expanded 
upon in the Guidance Notes.  
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9 Please could the Welsh Government clarify 
what their understanding of 'Specialist Advice', 
as described in the Pan Wales Remote Advice 
Service Guidance Notes encompasses, 
including whether this solely encompasses 
support provided under 'Specialist Casework' 
as set out in Annex 1 of the Guidance Notes 
document? 

All references to 'Specialist Advice' should be given the meaning provided under 
'Specialist Casework' as set out in Annex 1 of the Guidance Notes document. 
Welsh Government wishes to fund a Specialist Casework service through the Pan 
Wales Remote Advice Service opportunity. As stated in the Guidance Notes 
however, it is acknowledged that remote advice services will by their nature 
typically undertake a higher proportion of one-off or enquiry work than face-to-
face specialist advice services typically do. They will also typically not undertake 
representation in court or at a tribunal. It is nevertheless expected that the 
advisers delivering the Pan Wales Remote Advice Service have a very detailed 
knowledge of the law and case law and a depth of expertise to provide specialist 
advice and undertake specialist casework remotely, where it is in the client's best 
interest to do so. 

10 Please can the Welsh Government clarify the 
potential TUPE liabilities for each of the 13 
Lots, to facilitate effective service modelling and 
fully assess the financial viability of, and risk 
associated with, each of the 13 Lots? TUPE 
may have significant impacts and all providers 
would need clarity, please advise on how you 
will facilitate this for all providers.  

As set out in the guidance a bidder is responsible for obtaining at their own 
expense advice regarding the possible application of any contingencies; or other 
circumstances; or matters which might in any way affect their application for grant 
funding; for example, if an employee of a current recipient of one of the Welsh 
Government’s grant funding streams queries whether their current grant funded 
employment is covered by the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE).  

 

11 Please can the Welsh Government clarify 
whether the Pan-Wales Remote Advice Service 
requires a minimum amount to be spent on 
specialist debt advice to meet levy payer 
obligations, and if so what this minimum 
amount is? 

The levy-funded debt advice, and accompanying minimum specialist debt advice 
spend, is contained within the specialist face-to-face advice opportunities only 
(Opportunities 7 – 12 on the Application Form).  
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12 Q2 Proposed Service Delivery V' requests 
bidders to "demonstrate meaningful service 
delivery links with statutory primary care 
delivery and other well-being services within the 
voluntary and community sectors". This is a 
requirement referenced in the Guidance Notes 
for the Community Focussed and Specialist 
services, but not the Remote Advice Service. 
Please could Welsh Government clarify 
whether bidders for the Remote Advice Service 
are expected to demonstrate these links, and if 
so why this is not included within the Remote 
Advice Service requirements? 

 Bidders for the Pan-Wales Remote Service are required to ‘demonstrate 
meaningful service delivery links with statutory primary care delivery and other 
well-being services within the voluntary and community sectors’. It is accepted 
that these will be different in nature to those established in regional face-to-face 
services but there is still an expectation that the remote service considers the 
wider well-being needs of clients. 

13 Please can the Welsh Government confirm who 
the grant agreements will identify as the Data 
Controller for provision of the services? 

There is potential for there to be joint data controller between Welsh Government 
and the successful organisations.  This will be confirmed within the grant award 
letter. 

14 With regard to the Welsh Government's 
requirement that "Where a bidder is successful 
in respect of more than one of the thirteen grant 
opportunities available, Welsh Government 
would expect they are able to clearly 
demonstrate the cost efficiencies that will be 
attained", whether the Welsh Government 
would permit bidders to submit an Appendix 
with their completed grant application form(s), 
to provide an opportunity to fully outline 
expected efficiencies? 

Prior to assessment, Welsh Government does not wish to see details of any cost 
savings that can be achieved through the delivery of multiple opportunities as bids 
for each opportunity are being assessed on their own merits. To attach weight to 
these potential cost savings would directly advantage providers able to deliver 
multiple opportunities and would directly disadvantage providers able to deliver 
one funding opportunity only.   

15 Please can the Welsh Government explain how 
the requirement that bidders submit the names 
and roles of existing staff as part of the 
Organisational Structure information required 
complies with GDPR, and whether, considering 

It will be sufficient for bidders to indicate which of the proposed staff roles are 
existing posts. On commencement of any grant, successful grant recipients are 
expected to name the staff funded through this grant and who carrying out funded 
work. 
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the GDPR and privacy implications of this 
request, the Welsh Government would allow 
providers to note existing members of staff 
anonymously?    

 

16 For the avoidance of doubt please could the 
Welsh Government confirm the process for 
submitting completed Grant Applications? 

Please see page 11 of the grant application form for further details 

17 Please could the Welsh Government confirm 
whether images and diagrams are permitted as 
part of bidders quality responses, and if so 
whether words within images and diagrams will 
count towards the word count of the quality 
questions? 

We will be happy to accept a limited number of diagrams/images but only if they 
will offer a clearer explanation of a customer journey for example, than can be 
achieved by the use of words alone.  However, we would expect the 
diagrams/images to have minimal text as possible within them and this text would 
not count towards the maximum word count in a response. 

18 For the avoidance of doubt please can the 
Welsh Government confirm whether VAT 
applies to this grant? 

 No, VAT will not apply to the grant funding. 

19 The Grant Guidance document indicates that all 
levy funding will be allocated to the Specialist 
Advice Services. Please could Welsh 
Government confirm whether this means debt 
work, at all advice levels, is expected to be 
undertaken by the Specialist services? If this is 
not the case, please could Welsh Government 
indicate whether this means that debt work to 
be undertaken by the Community Focussed 
and Remote services are therefore not funded 
by levy payer contributions. 

From April 2019, HM Treasury will include in the Welsh Government’s annual 
block grant a sum of money calculated through a formula that includes an 
analysis of the percentage of indebted adults residing in Wales. In accordance 
with the Financial Guidance and Claims Act 2018, the Welsh Government will be 
asked to demonstrate to HM Treasury that is has, at least equal to the amount 
included in the block grant, spent money on the provision of debt advice and 
related services. In the event that the Welsh Government cannot demonstrate it 
has made expenditure on debt advice services to this amount, HMT will deduct 
any underspend from a future WG’s block grant. 
 
To facilitate its ability to account for expenditure on debt advice services, the 
Welsh Government is requesting that an amount of the grant funding within the 
Regional Specialist Advice Services, equal to the amount that the Welsh 
Government expects to be included within its annual block grant from HM 
Treasury, is used on the provision of an integrated debt advice casework service.  
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The Welsh Government expects that there will be additional grant spending from 
the Single Advice Fund on debt advice services from the available grant for the 
provision of the Community Focused and Remote Services. It is the responsibility 
of the bidder to identify and evidence its proposed spending on debt advice within 
these services.  

20 Please could the Welsh Government confirm 
whether an electronic signature is permitted for 
the applications?  

A signed declaration will be accepted as an electronic signature  

21 With regards to the scoring of bids, please 
could the Welsh Government indicate how 
operational and delivery synergies (as opposed 
to financial efficiencies) between seperate bids, 
potentially cutting across multiple regions, will 
be assessed and scored? 

The Single Advice Grant provides 13 different funding opportunities and bids for 
each opportunity are being assessed on their own merit. Within each opportunity, 
bidders will be required to describe how they will ensure that the service that they 
propose to offer will be integrated with other relevant services that clients might 
require. Whilst therefore demonstrating expected integration will enhance a bid, 
demonstrating delivery efficiencies through proposing to deliver services under 
more than one of the opportunities will not result in a greater points score, as to 
give weight to this would directly advantage providers able to deliver multiple 
opportunities and would disadvantage providers able to deliver one funding 
opportunity only. 

22 For the avoidance of doubt please can the 
Welsh Government confirm any Welsh 
Language standards which will apply to the 
delivery of this grant, and provide them to all 
bidders as soon as possible, to support 
effective service planning? 

 Please see section 6, question 4 within the guidance notes for further detail. 

23 Will it be a requirement for providers to apply 
the DAPA Quality assurance processes in debt 
advice elements of provision?  

The agreement is in force until June 2020, however, the DAPA services provided 
within the agreement only apply to a limited amount of debt advice service 
delivery to be assessed. Therefore, in order for the organisation responsible for 
the delivering the DAPA in Wales to identify the providers delivering debt advice 
who will be engaging with the DAPA process from the 01/01/2020, only providers 
delivering debt advice within the Regional Specialist Advice Services will be 
subject to DAPA process. 
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Please note, the Single Advice Fund offers grants for the provision of social 
welfare information and advice across several subject areas. Therefore, the 
Welsh Government intends to explore with all providers receiving grants from the 
Single Advice Fund how the quality of advice service being funded can be 
independently assessed. 

 Updated 15/05/2019  

24 Is it the intention that there will be 13 separate 
awards? 

The intention is that in each of the six regions, one award is made in relation to 
Regional Community Focussed Advice Services and one in relation to Regional 
Specialist Advice Services. Together with the Pan-Wales Remote Service, this will 
total 13 separate awards. 

25 Our organisation currently covers 4 different 
regions working with a number of organisations. 
Would we submit one bid requesting a 
percentage of funding for each region we 
cover?  Or would we submit separate bids to 
cover each separate region? 

A separate bid would need to be submitted for funding for each region.  A bid will 
evidence how the regionally planned services will be delivered in accordance with 
the needs of local communities across one specific region. Therefore if you are 
bidding for funding across four regions then four bids will need to be submitted (or 
eight if you are bidding for both the Community Focussed Advice and the 
Specialist Advice Services in each region). 

26 You are asking organisations to collaborate and 
work together - strategically this could be done, 
however operationally this will be difficult, and it 
will be a challenge to create a new service / re-
shape the way we work – will there be a 
developmental approach? 
 
 
 
 
 

Welsh Government’s aspirational vision is that Wales will have a sustainable and 
cost effective model of delivering quality assured advice services, with providers 
designing and delivering services aligned to the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Act 2015 that offer the best outcomes for people in Wales. 
 
Given we are at the end of the Welsh Government’s current funding settlement; at 
this time we are only able to offer a firm grant commitment for a 12-month period. 
However, it is possible that the grant funding to successful applicants could be 
extended beyond the initial 12-month period.  With this in mind, whilst we 
appreciate collaboration takes time to develop it, we are committed to a minimum 
of a 12 week period to allow time for providers to develop their proposals. WG will 
work with the successful organisations to monitor the outputs achieved by their 
advice service and how they are positively developing their service planning and 
delivering models to support the aspirational aims for advice service provision. 
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27 The agreed funding is for 12 months only but 
you are asking for a longer term ambition? Will 
there be another competitive exercise? 
 

The answer is as set out in the answer above.   
 
Itis acknowledged that there would be little appetite amongst bidders for a further 
competitive exercise soon after the current one. Therefore, the ambition is to 
develop the journey of the successful applications, subject to satisfactory 
performance, over a reasonable period of time.  
 
Please note that when future Welsh Government budget allocations is clearer, 
officials will need to take further advice to confirm the proposed course of action 
relating to any extension of the grant award to a successful applicant or further 
competitive exercise. 

28 This is meant to be a ‘Single’ Advice fund – why 
are you asking 1 organisation to submit more 
than 1 bid? 

This is a single advice programme, not a single grant award. The Single Advice 
Fund Grant provides 13 different funding opportunities and bids for each 
opportunity are being assessed on their own merit.  
 

29 My organisation could potentially submit 6 bids, 
would this mean I would need to complete 6 
separate monitoring forms each quarter? 

WG will work with the successful organisations to work through and agree the 
mechanism for monitoring which will satisfy the requirements. 

30 How will quality be evidenced? Will Investors in 
People carry as much weight as the advice-
specific standards listed in the guidance? 

Quality will be assessed through evidence of possession of a quality standard and 
through an explanation of the experience and proven ability of a provider/s to 
deliver provided in response to Section 6, Q1 of the Application Form. 
The Quality Assurance Standards listed in the Guidance Notes are ones which 
Welsh Government considers may in any given bid be capable of demonstrating 
sufficient quality assurance. The key point is the requirement to demonstrate 
sufficient quality assurance for the type/level/nature of service proposed. Welsh 
Government recognises that there are other quality standards that bidders may 
wish to rely upon to demonstrate that they have sufficient quality assurance. In 
determining whether the particular quality standard has the necessary 
components to provide quality assurance, the Welsh Government will consider 
the extent to which it meets the requirements of the Information and Advice 
Quality Framework for Wales and will consider whether the level of quality 



9 
 

assurance the particular standard offers is sufficient for the level or type of advice 
service that is being proposed. 
Given the range of standards that bidders may hold and the range of service 
types that bidders may propose to deliver, Welsh Government is unable to make 
individual determinations regarding whether a particular quality standard is 
acceptable prior to doing so as a part of the assessment of all bids received.  
 
It is important to note that holding one of the standards listed on page 11 of the 
Guidance Notes will not necessarily mean that sufficient quality assurance is in 
place to deliver any type of advice service. Organisations must hold a recognised 
advice Quality Standard at the appropriate level for the service they are proposing 
to provide. 

31 My organisation is about to start the journey in 
obtaining a quality standard and we are anxious 
about the timeframe and the rollout of the IAQF 
was delayed.   

The IAQF Independent Assessment Service, through which Advice Service 
Quality Standards are assessed as being compliant with the IAQF has only 
recently been designed and implemented. Therefore, it is not appropriate to make 
it a condition that a provider must hold an Advice Quality Standard awarded by an 
IAQF Accredited Body to access the Single Advice Fund.   
 
However, a condition of the grant is that a provider applying to the Single Advice 
Fund must hold a recognised advice Quality Standard at the appropriate level for 
the service they are proposing to provide.  Through this condition the WG is able 
to demonstrate progress of its commitment to only fundi quality assured providers. 

32 If a number of organisations merge together to 
work collaboratively, there may potentially be 
TUPE implications. Please can you advise?  

As set out in the guidance a bidder is responsible for obtaining at their own 
expense advice regarding the possible application of any contingencies; or other 
circumstances; or matters which might in any way affect their application for grant 
funding. 

33 Please can you clarify whether the Pan-Wales 
Remote Advice Service requires a minimum 
amount to be spent on specialist debt advice to 
meet levy payer obligations? 

From April 2019, HM Treasury will include in the Welsh Government’s annual 
block grant a sum of money calculated through a formula that includes an 
analysis of the percentage of indebted adults residing in Wales. In accordance 
with the Financial Guidance and Claims Act 2018, the Welsh Government will be 
asked to demonstrate to HM Treasury that it has, at least equal to the amount 
included in the block grant, spent money on the provision of debt advice and 
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related support services. In the event that the Welsh Government cannot 
demonstrate it has made expenditure on debt advice services to this amount, HM 
Treasury will deduct any underspend from a future WG’s block grant. 
 
To facilitate its ability to account for expenditure on debt advice services, the 
Welsh Government requires an amount of the available grant funding within the 
Regional Specialist Advice Services, equal to the amount to be included within its 
annual block grant from HM Treasury, be used on the provision of an integrated 
debt advice casework service. (Opportunities 7 – 12 on the Application Form.) 
 
The Welsh Government fully expects that there will be additional spending from 
the Single Advice Fund on debt advice services from the available grant for the 
provision of the Community Focused and Remote Services. However, it is the 
responsibility of the bidder to identify and evidence the amounts of grant that it 
proposes to spend on the provision of debt advice within these services. For 
information, the WG also has an interest in shared agreements, with other UK 
nations, for the provision of debt advice and related support services, which are 
not included in this £8million grant.  Welsh Government and the other UK nations 
will make decisions, on if and how the shared agreements will continue beyond 
April 2020. 

34 Elaborate on view of TUPE implications 
regarding the levy funded services? 

As explained in the response to Q33, an amount of money will be included each 
year by HM Treasury in the Welsh Government’s block grant.  For accounting 
purposes, the Welsh Government intends to ring fenced sum of money for the 
provision of debt advice and related services, (equal to the amount included in the 
block grant) within the Regional Specialist Advice Services.     A bidder is 
responsible for obtaining at their own expense advice regarding the possible 
application of any contingencies; or other circumstances; or matters which might 
in any way affect their application for grant funding. 

35 a)      Are the ‘Budget Costs 19/20’, as detailed 
within the Budget Worksheet, for the period 
January to March 2020 and the ‘Budget Costs 

Yes to a) and b) – WG is exploring whether under or overspend from Q1 in FY 
2019/20 can be carried forward to Q2 in FY 2020/21 and will provide an update 
on this as soon as possible.  Update 28/06 - The budgets are set as detailed in 

the guidance, however please provide your best estimated forecasted spend per 
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20/21’ for the period April 2020 to December 
2020? 
b)      Is the ‘Funding Available’, as detailed in 
the table on page 9 of the Guidance Notes, split 
£360,404 for the period January to March 2020 
and the £1,081,212 for the period April to 
December 2020? 

quarter, whether this is less or more than the amount suggested for each financial 
year, providing the total amount does not exceed the total amount for the full 12 
months’ 

36 A bidder is required to state their minimum 
volume expectations, does this mean the 
funding will be awarded to those who can 
demonstrate they will do the most work? 

This section is about value for money - the information provided regarding 
minimum volume expectations, the average cost per FTE adviser and the 
anticipated outcomes will be combined to provide a broad picture of value for 
money. 

37 Do funds have to be allocated within a region in 
line with the Modelling the Need for Advice on 
Social Welfare Topics report? 

In allocating the funding regionally, Welsh Government has based its allocation on 
identified need, in line with the findings of the Welsh Government’s independently 
commissioned report ‘Modelling the Need for Advice on Social Welfare Topics in 
Wales’, (2017). Welsh Government recognise however that this provides a 
starting point and that local and regional providers may wish to build upon this by 
supplementing this data with their own data or experiences or with other 
appropriate data, relevant to the type of services that they are proposing to 
deliver. This may include consideration of existing provision in their area or 
region. The key requirements here set out in Question 3 on the Application Form 
are that the funded services are delivered in accordance with the specific needs 
of local communities, that the overall positive contribution as a result of available 
resources is maximised, with duplication of effort minimised, that people have 
access to required information and advice services across the region and that the 
approach that you have taken provides confidence that the funded information 
and advice services will be fully utilised by people in need. 

38 I am enquiring about the above fund and in 
particular page 11 of the guidance that sets out 
the Acceptable advice Quality Standards. This 
provides a list of quality standards but says the 
list is are not limited to. 
 

The Quality Assurance Standards listed in the Guidance Notes are ones that 
Welsh Government considers may in any given bid be capable of demonstrating 
sufficient quality assurance. The key point is the requirement to demonstrate that 
the Quality Assurance Standard offers sufficient quality assurance for the 
type/level/nature of advice service proposed.  
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We currently hold the Quality Performance 
Mark (QPM) for advocacy. Our staff hold city 
and guilds qualification in advocacy. Can you 
clarify if this quality performance mark would be 
acceptable?  
 

Welsh Government recognises that there are other quality standards that bidders 
may wish to rely upon to demonstrate that they have sufficient quality assurance. 
In determining whether a particular Quality Assurance Standard has the 
necessary components to provide quality assurance, the Welsh Government will 
consider the extent to which it meets the requirements of the Information and 
Advice Quality Framework for Wales and will consider whether the level of quality 
assurance the particular standard offers is sufficient for the level or type of advice 
service that is being proposed. Given the range of standards that bidders may 
hold and the range of service types that bidders may propose to deliver, Welsh 
Government is unable to make individual determinations regarding whether a 
particular quality standard is acceptable prior to doing so as a part of the 
assessment of all bids received. Holding one of the standards listed on page 11 of 
the Guidance Notes will not necessarily mean that sufficient quality assurance is 
in place to deliver any type of advice service. Organisations must hold a 
recognised advice Quality Standard at the appropriate level for the service they 
are proposing to provide. 

39 In respect to the Single Advice Fund, please 
may we query whether Investors in Diversity is 
an acceptable quality standard? 

The answer is set out in the answer to question 38 above. 

 Updated 22/05/19  

40 You have suggested that bidders plan their 
services with the longer term in mind but the 
grant is only offered for 12 months. Does this 
mean that the grant might be rolled over? 

Due to the timing of the Comprehensive Spending Review, Welsh Government 
only has certainty regarding its budget up to the end of March 2020. Due to Brexit 
uncertainty, the length of the next WG settlement in unconfirmed. For these 
reasons, we are only able to offer a 12 month grant. Welsh Government is 
however committed to supporting the delivery of social welfare advice 

41 Do all providers need to be quality marked? All providers intending to propose generalist or specialist advice will be required to 
hold an appropriate advice Quality Standard by 1st January 2020. 

42 Has provider mapping already been 
undertaken. 

The Dewis Cymru website provides details of social welfare advice providers 
across Wales. This directory is extensive but not complete. It is anticipated that 
the development of advice networks across Wales will allow for more detailed 
provider mapping in the future. 
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43 If the most highliy pointed application in respect 
of an opportunity doesn’t meet all the 
requirements of the fund, could it be that you 
will consider other applications received and 
suggest that one application includes elements 
of another? 

Yes, this is exactly the scenario envisaged by the following paragraph in the 
Guidance Notes: 
If there are no applications in respect of any particular opportunity that fully and 
adequately meet the aims and requirements of the grant then Welsh Government 
reserves the right to support more than one application where doing so would 
result in combined services that met the aims and requirements of the grant. 

44 The Single Advice Fund stresses the 
importance and value of meaningful links with 
Health. Is this a realistic expectation given the 
challenges involved in forming cross-sector 
links? 

Welsh Government is committed to the health and wellbeing of the people of 
Wales. We are also committed to funding services that seek sustainable 
outcomes and which consider people’s needs broadly. Social prescribing projects 
are currently operating in many parts of Wales, encompassing a wide range of 
community services including advice services. Some examples can be found 
here:  http://www.primarycareone.wales.nhs.uk/social-prescribing-projects-by-
area.  Welsh Government is working with Public Health Wales and other 
stakeholders to bring more coordination to these activities and to build the 
evidence base for social prescribing. The development of regional advice 
networks will provide additional opportunities for advice stakeholders to liaise with 
the health sector. 

45 Does the levy-funded debt advice have to all 
take place at the specialist advice level as its 
presence means that debt advice makes up a 
disproportionately large part of the specialist 
advice opportunities? 

Yes, minimum debt advice expenditure is required only in respect of the Specialist 
Advice opportunity. This reflects how the levy-funded debt advice services were 
previously delivered. Through the devolution of budgets, Welsh Government also 
funds a number of pan-Wales debt services or activities that are currently outside 
of the scope of the Single Advice Fund. We recognise that not all of the work 
undertaken by the specialist advice services will be in-depth casework. A 
proportion will be one-off work and may not always fully draw upon the advisers’ 
extensive knowledge. The key expectation is that the advisers have the capability 
to immediately provide specialist level casework where that is the most 
appropriate response to the client. 

 Updated 24/05/19   

46 Please can the Welsh Government clarify what 
TUPE advice they have taken prior to issuing 
the tender? 

The Welsh Government obtained legal advice on the implications of TUPE prior to 
issuing the grant-funding scheme. However, the Welsh Government is not able to 
offer advice to a bidder on this issue, or any other issue that might affect an 
application for grant funding.  
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As explained in the Guidance document, a bidder is responsible for obtaining at 
their own expense advice regarding the possible application of any contingencies; 
or other circumstances; or matters, which might in any way affect their application 
for, grant funding.  
 

47 Please can the Welsh Government provide 
potential providers with a list of current funded 
organisations, to facilitate effective due 
diligence related to potential TUPE liabilities? 

The organisations currently receiving Welsh Government grants to deliver social 
welfare information and advice projects are: 
 
Age Cymru 
Citizens Advice Cymru  
Shelter Cymru 
SNAP Cymru 
Tenovus Cancer Care 
 

48 "With reference to Section Seven of the Grant 
Application Form, please can the Welsh 
Government:  
a) indicate how they expect providers to 
demonstrate/evidence GDPR compliance, 
including the security principles contained 
within GDPR?  
b) confirm the extent to which any requirements 
references in response to 'a' would cover an 
organisation's supply chain, including any 
processers and sub-processors, controllers, or 
sub-grantees?" 

As advised in section seven in the guidance document, in completing Annex A, 
bidders will advise which personal data items they will collect in the provision of 
the proposed service. Where a question arises as to whether any area of 
proposed collected data is necessary and relevant to the purpose of this project, 
Welsh Government will discuss this with the bidder prior to confirming any grant 
award. 
 
Welsh Government will also discuss details such as data processing / sub 
processing / controllers with the successful organisation/s ahead of issuing grant 
award letters. 
 

49 Please can the Welsh Government confirm their 
view on data controller and/or processor status 
for further uses of information collated and 
processes under the agreement, and/or for 
ancillary uses 

Answer as above, this will be discussed with the successful organisation/s and 
confirmed within the grant award letter. 
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 Updated 28/06/2019  

50 With reference to the Grant Guidance Notes, 
Grant Funding Purpose point 6 (page 3), please 
can the Welsh Government clarify the meaning 
and use of the word 'core' within this context? 

The Single Advice Fund will offer grants to quality assured providers who can 
deliver free to the client social welfare information and advice services on a 
regional or pan-Wales basis. The opportunity to submit a bid for grant funding to 
deliver the free to client social welfare information and advice services is open to 
all providers holding an Advice Quality Standard appropriate to the type of advice 
service they are seeking funding to deliver. This includes third sector, statutory 
and private sector advice providers. 
A key requirement is that providers are impartial and have the ability to always act 
in the best interest of the people who will be receiving the free to client funded 
advice services. This will involve setting out people’s rights in law and for some 
advice types, advocating on their behalf to access those rights. Many statutory 
functions of local authorities will not meet these requirements. Where they do 
however, these services would be capable of falling within this fund. Welsh 
Government wishes the Single Advice Fund to make a positive contribution to the 
availability of information and advice in Wales so any proposals should be for 
specific advice capacity that would not be available to people in need other than 
through the support of this grant.   

51 We, as the central organising charity of our 
network of local, independently governed 
agencies, are likely to be the lead organisation. 
We will have Trusted Charity in place by 
January 2020 and plan to include the IAQF 
within our QA processes. Currently, we oversee 
the governance quality of our local agencies, 
facilitate operational good practice networks for 
caseworkers and technical officers, and 
collate/analyse client service data from all 
agencies for monitoring and reporting purposes 
(to Welsh Government). Caseworkers are 
usually directly employed and managed by local 
agencies who operate within the quality 

The requirement is that at the commencement of the grant funding period, i.e., 
01/01/2020, a funded provider involved in the delivery of generalist or specialist 
advice services must hold a recognised advice Quality Standard, appropriate to 
the level of service being provided. The guidance provides some examples of 
advice Quality Standards that could be acceptable, dependent on the level of 
advice being provided. This list provided is not exhaustive so it is open to bidders 
to highlight alternative quality assurance standards, which could include ones 
operated by overseeing membership organisations. Unfortunately Welsh 
Government is unable to say in advance whether a particular standard will be 
sufficient, given that this can only be determined both with a detailed 
understanding of the quality assurance standard itself and in the context of the 
service proposal being made 
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framework we apply but do not necessarily 
have a QA scheme in place themselves. We 
are considering a matrix management 
arrangement whereby agencies employ and 
manage the caseworkers but the QA framework 
is provided and overseen by us, the central 
charity. Would this meet your QA scheme 
requirements of providers?   

52 Please can the Welsh Government define what 
is meant by the term 'collaborative' for the 
purposes of completing Section 2 in the 
application form? Does this include funded and 
unfunded partners or just funded partners? (For 
the purposes of completing this section). 

In Section 2 of the application Form, ‘collaborative’ refers to any partners who will 
receive grants funds. There will be opportunities to highlight other non-funded 
partners in your responses to the questions contained in Section 6 of the form. 

53 Please can the Welsh Government provide a 
breakdown of the scoring criteria for each 
question? For example at what scoring point is 
a question response acceptable, exceeding 
expectations or falling below the required 
standard? What is this based upon? Will the 
panel will be using this approach to 
systematically and fairly assess all grant offers? 
If this is not a system being used, can the 
Welsh Government please provide details of 
the approach to the scoring of all grants for all 
providers to ensure complete transparency and 
avoid any issues that may lead to impacting 
upon the  implementation of the services by 
successful providers.   

Please see panel scoring sheet on the website 

54 Within the guidance it states “a proportion of the 
funds (specified in table below) must be spent 
on the provision of specialist debt advice 

The specific requirements regarding spend on specialist debt advice are 
applicable to the six regional specialist advice opportunities. Page 6 of the 
Guidance Notes for the grant state that is ‘intended to support specialist advice 
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services”; if the bid does not include specialist 
debt advice services will this mean that 
proportion of the fund is not available and 
cannot be included in the proposed bid or will 
the bid automatically be rejected? 

services providing benefits, debt, housing, employment and discrimination 
(including education) rights advice only’. For the avoidance of doubt, the required 
integrated specialist advice service will provide each of these categories of 
advice. Therefore an application for one of the regional specialist advice 
opportunities that does not propose to provide all five of the areas of specialist 
advice will not meet the grant criteria.   

55 Within the specialist Advice Services fund, must 
applicants cover all areas identified in 
paragraph one on page six or can they identify 
areas of specialism? 

As described on page 6 of the guidance document this grant is intended to 
support specialist advice services providing benefits, debt, housing, employment 
and discrimination (including education) rights advice only. For the avoidance of 
doubt, proposals must cover all five categories of advice 

56 If an organisation is a collaborative partner 
giving advice but another organisation is lead 
would the collaborative partner have to hold a 
Quality Standard at the grant commence date?   

The requirement is that at the commencement of the grant funding period, i.e., 
01/01/2020, a funded provider involved in the delivery of generalist or specialist 
advice services must hold a recognised advice Quality Standard, appropriate to 
the level of service being provided 

57 In relation to the reporting of figures, will 'cases' 
or 'matters' or both be counted? 

This section is about value for money - the information provided regarding 
minimum volume expectations, the average cost per FTE adviser and the 
anticipated outcomes will be combined to provide a broad picture of value for 
money. By ‘case’ we are referring to work typically totalling 30 minutes or more 
that may require a greater level of recording than an enquiry and which would 
more often involve the provision of written confirmation of advice. We wish to 
know the forecast number of discrete pieces of work of 30 minutes or more, 
regardless of how an organisation might normally refer to them. 

58 Please could Welsh Government clarify the 
extent to which lead bidders are expected to 
quality assure the work of their funded partners 
within a region, and have Welsh Government 
considered the resource implications high levels 
of quality assurance would have for 
organisations given Welsh Government's 
requirement for as much resource as possible 
to be dedicated to frontline delivery? 

Given that each provider delivering frontline advice is expected to hold an 
acceptable advice Quality Standard, Welsh Government would not expect the 
lead bidder to need to run any additional routine quality assurance systems on 
other partners. 
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 With regards to the Outcome Expectations and 
Monitoring table at Q6 iii, please could the 
Welsh Government indicate whether providers 
are required to propose indicative 
outputs/outcomes for each Activity listed? 

Applicants should identify the activities and measures that they will use to 
determine whether the aims of the funding programme are being met. Measures 
will usually be necessary to determine whether the anticipated results are being 
achieved. 

59 Please note that the TUPE information we have 
provided to Welsh Government does not 
include staff employed under former Money 
Advice Service Debt Advice Project. This 
information will be provided soon. Please could 
Welsh Government confirm they will circulate to 
relevant providers following receipt? 

The information will be shared with any prospective bidders if requested. 

60 Powys, is viewed as a region in itself for much 
its governance and delivery arrangements, for 
example the Regional Partnership Board, 
Substance Misuse Area Planning Board etc.  
As such, and to help inform bidding application 
opportunities, it would be helpful to clarify 
whether there is any flexibility with the 
interpretation of this in relation to the Single 
Advice Fund and whether a regional bid could 
be contained to Powys? 

Applications for grant funding can be submitted by an individual provider or by a 
collaboration of providers. However, as the funded services are to be planned and 
delivered on a regional basis, a proposal from an individual LA will have to 
demonstrate how it would ensure there is equal and consistent access to the 
funded advice services across all parts of the region (not only within its own LA 
area). It is anticipated that collaborations of providers (perhaps an individual LA 
collaborating with other quality assured providers within their region) will generally 
be better able to demonstrate how they will ensure equal and consistent access to 
services and also meet the full range of advice needs of the diverse communities 
within a region 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, the relevant region for the Single Advice Fund that 
includes Powys CC is the Mid and West region as described in the application 
form. 

61 The IAAP states one of its aims is to “improve 
access to services, particularly amongst people 
who tend not to access services until they are in 
crisis” and the guidance notes say that SAF will 
have “a focus upon effectively promoting early 
access to advice amongst the more vulnerable 

In respect of the face-to-face funding opportunities, the Guidance states that: 
Bidders are expected to both ensure widespread access but also to consider how 
their service delivery model can proactively target services to groups of people 
who may have a greater need for [specialist/generalist] social welfare advice as a 
result of specific characteristics they may possess or as a result of the specific 
circumstances that they are experiencing. The Welsh Government does not wish 
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households…” and later “…reaching people 
who may not usually access mainstream advice 
services…”, also “…target those in most need 
first…” and “…groups of people who may have 
a greater need…”. The guidance notes say that 
WG does not wish to be prescriptive over who 
these groups might be but then list those 
experiencing domestic violence or those with a 
chronic medical condition as two examples. 
Could you confirm whether older people would 
be classed as a group of people who have a 
greater need given that The Strategy for Older 
People in Wales 2013-2023 states that; “Older 
people are among those at the highest risk of 
financial exclusion and least likely to claim their 
financial entitlements”? Secondly, how will WG 
ensure that these groups (such as older people) 
are being considered and prioritised within 
applications? 

to be prescriptive over who these groups might be, but they could for example 
include people experiencing domestic violence or those living with a chronic 
medical condition. 
 
In assessing the bids, the assessment panel will score each bid received in line 
with the Panel Assessment Sheet 

 


